NATIONS CERD

: : Distr.
Intern_atllonall Convention on GENERAL
the Elimination
CERD/ C/ SR. 1260
of all Forms of 13 March 1998
Racial Discrimination

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fifty-second session
SUMMVARY RECORD OF THE 1260t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 11 March 1998, at 3 p.m

Chai rman: M. YUTZIS
CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

El eventh to fourteenth periodic reports of Yugoslavia

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 98- 15526 (E)



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1260
page 2

In the absence of M. Aboul-Nasr, M. Yutzis, Vice-Chairman, took
the Chair.

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p. m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 7) (continued)

Eleventh to fourteenth periodic reports of Yugoslavia (CERD/ C/ 299/ Add. 17
HRI / CORE/ 1/ Add. 40)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. Hodza, Ms. Savovic,
M. Mlosevic, M. Diordjevic and Ms. Nikolic (Yugoslavia) took places at the
Committee table.

2. M. HODZA (Yugosl avia) stressed the inportance that the Federal Republic
of Yugoslavia attached to conpliance with the Convention. It had enjoyed
fruitful cooperation with the Committee and with the Committee's 1993 good

of fices m ssion, whose report had been both objective and positive.

3. Yugosl avia was a signatory to all mgjor international human rights
conventions and made every effort to neet its reporting obligations under the
various instrunments. The period covered by the report (CERD/ C/299/Add.17) had
been a tinme of fundanmental change in terms of population and the soci al
economi c and political situation of the country. Those changes had rade it
difficult for Yugoslavia to fulfil its obligations under internationa

conventi ons.

4, The Federal Republic of Yugoslavia, with its two constituent Republics
of Serbia and Montenegro, had continued the international personality of the
former Yugosl avia and, despite extremely unfavourable circunmstances, including
i nternational isolation, conflict, severe sanctions and the burden of

700, 000 refugees from Croati a and Bosnia and Herzegovi na, had managed to
preserve internal stability and the nulti-ethnic, nulti-confessional and

mul ticultural character of its society. It had also succeeded in preserving
the prerequisites for upgrading and refornming the |egal system and ci vi

soci ety and upholding the rule of law, respect for human rights and the rights
of national mnorities in accordance with its international obligations. The
promul gation of the Constitution of the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia on

27 April 1992 had pronpted | arge-scale legislative reformto ensure that the

| aws of the |land were consistent with its provisions. Bills on crimnal and

| aw suit procedure were pending, the Iaw on citizenship had been pronul gated
and the legal text for a bill on the ombudsman was being prepared. The
Parliament of the Republic of Serbia was about to consider a bill on |oca

sel f-governnent and a | aw on the nedia. Modst of those legislative texts
related, directly or indirectly, to inplenentation of the Convention

5. The Constitution guaranteed a host of political freedoms and rights,

i ncluding freedom of the press and other nedia w thout censorship, freedom of
political, trade union and other forns of association and the right to public
criticismof State authorities and officials. The Constitution guaranteed
that all citizens were equal in the exercise of their freedons and rights,
irrespective of national origin, religious belief and so forth. Menbers of



CERD/ C/ SR. 1260
page 3

m nority groups in Yugoslavia, who accounted for some 30 per cent of the
popul ati on, enjoyed special mnority rights in accordance with rel evant

i nternational instrunments. The Constitution contained a series of provisions
covering the rights and freedons of national mnorities including equality in
respect of nationality, the right to devel op and express ethnic, cultural
linguistic and other specificities and the right to official use of their

| anguage and al phabet, in parallel with the Serbian | anguage, in areas

i nhabited by them Menbers of national mnorities were entitled to politica
organi zation and political representation and with the sole exception of the
Al bani an national mnority in Kosovo and Metohija, availed thenmsel ves of that
right and were thus able to participate in the social and political affairs of
the country, with representation in government bodies fromlocal to federa

| evel .

6. Legi sl ati ve and executive authorities at federal and republic |evels
provi ded for machinery for follow ng up, nonitoring and protecting the
exerci se of constitutional freedons and rights. The Federal Mnistry of
Justice and its Sector for Human Rights and the Federal Mnistry for Foreign
Affairs played a particular role, as did the Ofice of Mnister in the
Government of the Republic of Serbia responsible for national mnority
guestions. In the Republic of Montenegro conpetence for such issues rested
with the Council for the Protection of Rights of Menmbers of National and

Et hni ¢ G oups.

7. He referred the Cormittee to booklets containing topical data on such
i ssues as education and | anguages in the territory of Yugoslavia, that were
avail able for the Committee' s perusal

8. M. RECHETOV (Country Rapporteur) wel conmed the resunption of dial ogue
between the Committee and the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia, particularly at
a time when Yugoslavia was the focus of international attention and rel ations
with one of its provinces, Kosovo and Metohija, were strained. The Committee
woul d have to consider what advice and experience it could offer to help
reduce tension in that area and prevent the conflict from escal ating further

9. His comments woul d be based on material drawn from docunents of the
Conmittee itself, reports of other human rights bodi es of Special Rapporteurs
of the Commi ssion on Human Rights, and of non-governnental organizations
(NGCs), and on court rulings.

10. In 1993, the Committee had discussed the report of the Federal Republic
of Yugoslavia (Serbia and Montenegro) (CERD/C/248). In its concluding
observations (A/48/18), it had expressed its hope that neasures woul d be taken
to counter extrem smand ul tranationalismon ethnic grounds. O particular
concern had been the deteriorating situation in Kosovo. The Conmittee had
regretted the absence of dial ogue between the Governnment and the | eaders of

t he Al banians in Kosovo ained at reducing tension and hel ping to prevent
further massive human rights violations in the region. It had underlined that
non-di scrimnation in the enjoynent of fundanental, civil, political, socia
and cultural rights nust be effectively guaranteed in |law and actively
protected in practice if further ethnic unrest was to be avoided. The
Committee had stated that it did not encourage unilateral trends towards
separati smor secession and had advised the State Party that the best way to



CERD/ C/ SR. 1260
page 4

di scourage such phenomena was to pronote and protect minority rights and
interethnic tolerance and to strengthen the territorial integrity of the State
by considering ways of assuring autonony in Kosovo with a view to ensuring the
effective representation of Albanians in political and judicial institutions
and their participation in denocratic processes.

11. Taki ng into account the Governnment's expressed wish to pronmote a

di al ogue with the Al banians in Kosovo, the Commttee had offered its good
offices for a three-person mssion to help find a peaceful solution to issues
concerning respect for human rights. The mission, in which he had taken part,
had visited Kosovo at the end of 1993, and had worked tirelessly to do what it
could to stop future ethnic unrest and prevent it from devel oping into armed
conflict, and it had refused to support any separatist aspirations. At the
time it had seemed that the mission had won the understandi ng of both the

Yugosl av authorities and representatives of the Al banian community. It had
initially focussed its work on preparing the ground for a normalization in the
situation of education and health services. It had |ooked into the need for

recogni zed educational curricula so as to ensure the renewal of a single
systemin schools and bring an end to the parallel systemexisting at the
time. It had raised the question of education being provided on the basis of
recognition of the 1990 educational curricula approved by the Al banians
thenmsel ves as a step towards normalization

12. Anot her nmaj or problem at the tine had been health care. Al banian
doctors had either left or been dismi ssed from State hospitals, leading to a
deterioration of the health care system The mi ssion had addressed the
qgquestion of the return of those doctors and nedical staff.

13. The m ssion had al so raised other issues. For exanple, representatives
of the Al banian community had been assured by the menbers of the m ssion that
conpl aints of alleged cases of ill-treatnment of Al banians by the police and

the security forces would be taken up with the Yugoslav authorities if the

Al bani ans provided themwi th a specific list of such allegations.
Unfortunately, during their stay in Kosovo, the menbers of the m ssion had not
been given any such materi al

14. The mission had al so considered the invol venent of the Kosovo Al bani ans
incivil life. 1t had received information stating that not only had the

Al bani ans failed to participate in parlianmentary and | ocal elections but also
had not been counted in censuses. The forner Special Rapporteur of the

Commi ssi on on Human Ri ghts, M. Tadeusz Mazow ecki, had noted earlier that

Al bani ans had not voted in the election of judges either. Al banians were said
to account for nore than 80 per cent of the population of Kosovo: that neant
that had they participated in the elections, the judicial systemwould have
been one of their choice. But had Al banian judges been el ected, they would
have had to be sworn in under the rules of the Republic of Serbia, a

ci rcunst ance whi ch many Al bani ans woul d have consi dered to be an obstacl es.
He had recently seen material stating that had the Al banians participated in
regi onal elections, they would have taken 80 per cent of the vote.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1260
page 5

15. On the education system the mssion had found that in fact the
curricula put forward by the Al banians and by the Serbs had not differed very
substantially and it was therefore unclear why they had not been able to cone
to some formof agreenent. Educational material was one stunmbling bl ock
because it was prepared at the level of the Republic of Serbia.

16. The nenbers of the mission had further discussed with Al banian
representatives questions regarding the nass nedia, especially radio and

tel evision, and | abour legislation. They had been informed about steps taken
at the behest of the International Labour Organization to repeal certain

| egi sl ati on passed by the local adm nistration. It had enmerged from

di scussi ons about the acquisition of flats and registration of |oca
enterprises that those matters caused no great difficulties for the Al banian
popul ati on.

17. The nenbers of the m ssion had been deternmined to pursue their work
because it seenmed that they had a role to play as representati ves of the
international community, especially vis-a-vis the Al banians in Kosovo, and
they had proposed to them a programme for dealing with specific issues
relating to the everyday life of the population. Wen the work of the nission
had been discussed in the Commttee, many nenbers had expressed the view that
the fact that the situation in Kosovo had not worsened had perhaps been due in
part to the m ssion

18. The m ssion had also focused its attention on enpl oyment anong Al bani ans
i n Kosovo, where the unenploynent rate was very high, and on their
participation in admnistrative and |egal institutions. The hiring of

Al bani ans by the police had given rise to considerable criticism There had
been conpl aints and all egati ons of harassnment and persecution of Al bani ans by
the police. During the discussion of those issues in the Committee, the
guestion had been raised of autonony for Kosovo and whether it might lead to
secessi on from Yugosl avi a.

19. Fol | owi ng a nunber of well-known events, a continuation of the nmission
had proved inpossible. 1In 1995, the Conmittee had again raised the question
of resumi ng the m ssion

20. One inportant devel opment which had been indirectly related to the
activities of the mission had been the signing in Belgrade on 1 Septenber 1996
by Sl obodan M1 osevic, President of the Republic of Serbia, and

| br ahi m Rugova, the head of the Al banian Conmunity, of a menorandum of

under standi ng on the normalization of the educational systemin Kosovo and the
return of Al banian students and teachers to school

21. Turning to the fourteenth periodic report of Yugoslavia
(CERD/ C/ 299/ Add. 17), he said that it was nost informative, especially on

| egi sl ation, but |acked specific information on actual practice. Concerning
paragraph 7, for exanple, could the del egation of Yugoslavia provide specific
exanpl es of how the Convention was applied before the courts of |aw and/or
adm ni strative agenci es?



CERD/ C/ SR. 1260
page 6

22. In paragraph 8, reference was nmade to “Yugoslavs”. He was unfamli ar
with such a national group. As to the entry “Muslinms”, that was a term which
usually referred to a religious group. Could the delegation of Yugoslavia
expl ain those ternms?

23. A problemto which the Special Rapporteur of the Comm ssion on Human
Rights on the situation in the territory of the former Yugoslavia had al so
drawn attention in her reports, was that in Yugoslavia there were three
Constitutions: the federal, the Serbian and the Montenegrin. Presumably the
three were not identical, and that would be expected to cause certain

probl emns.

24. Concerni ng paragraph 10, the Conmittee would |ike to have exanpl es,
firstly, of any invalidation of a decision or other individual act adopted by
the judicial, adnm nistrative and other State agencies or organi zations

di scharging public duties which had violated the principle of freedom and
equal ity of citizens and, secondly, of cases in which an injured party had
recei ved conpensation for damage caused by an official, a State agency or
organi zati on which had commtted such a violation

25. Any data which the del egation of Yugoslavia could provide on the
prohibition of activities carried out by political, trade union or other
organi zations to incite national, racial, religious and other intolerance or
hatred (para. 11) would |ikew se be nost useful. Once again, nmore specific
i nformati on was needed on the decision-naking procedure for banning politica
parties and citizens' associations (paragraph 12).

26. Par agraph 14 stated that the enjoynent of all constitutional freedons
and rights was exclusively linked to the status of citizenship identical for
all citizens irrespective of their nationality. What was the situation of
non-citizens?

27. Clarification was al so sought on the statement concerning the list of
rights of national nminorities, in paragraph 15. Kosovo Al bani ans had asserted
that they were pernmitted to display their synbols only in Serbian

28. Concer ni ng paragraph 22, the Conmittee would like to know whether the
Law on the Publication of Federal Laws, O her Laws and CGeneral Enactnents
appeared in the | anguage and script of the national mnorities.

29. Coul d additional information be nade available to the Cormittee on the
possibility of bringing to court cases in which the nedia had used materia
instigating national, racial or religious intolerance (paragraph 24)?
Regar di ng paragraph 25, what did “Radi o-Tel evision Serbia” mean? Ws that
sinply the station's nane?

30. In respect of paragraph 26 et seq., the Comrittee would |ike to have
speci fic information showing that national nminorities in the Republic of
Serbia had the possibility of receiving an education in their |anguage in
pri mary, secondary and hi gher-1evel schools.

31. Concerni ng paragraph 31, he said that according to informati on avail abl e
to the Cormittee, the many national mnorities in the Autononous Province of



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1260
page 7

Voj vodi na coexi sted harnoni ously. The sane could probably be said for the
Republ i ¢ of Montenegro, although he would |ike to have some specific exanples
to illustrate the statements made in paragraphs 35 to 38 regardi ng regul ati ons
in force in that Republic.

32. The report spoke of State bodies involved in questions relating to
national mnorities and nonitoring respect for the rights and freedons of
those groups. Additional information on the work of those bodies was needed.

33. Regarding article 4 of the Convention, the report cited an array of

| egal provisions covering violations of the rights of national mnorities. He
asked whet her in cases of unlawful acts perpetrated by the police, nenbers of
the arned forces or governnment officials, the | egal provisions referred to in
par agraph 50 were actually inplenmented and the persons concerned brought to
justice. The sanme question applied to paragraph 51 in connection with cases
of violations of civil rights for reasons of nationality or ethnic origin and
paragraph 53 in respect of denial of the right to use a | anguage or a script.
Coul d exanpl es be given of cases of punishnent for incitenent of national
racial and religious hatred (paragraph 54)?

34. Wth regard to inplementation of article 5 of the Convention, he said
that, judging fromwhat was said in paragraph 63, it did not appear that there
had been any positive devel opnents in the Autononous Province of Kosovo and
Met ohi ja, towards establishing contacts between the authorities and
representatives of the Al banian conmunity. The situation in Vojvodina,

descri bed in paragraph 64, on the other hand, |ooked quite prom sing.

35. As to the inplenentation of article 6, additional information was
request ed on paragraphs 68 and 71

36. Regarding article 7, convincing informati on was provi ded on the teaching
of minority |anguages in the Autononmous Province of Vojvodina. It would be
useful to receive confirmation as to the accuracy of the statement in

par agraph 80 that the nenbers of the Al banian conmunity had not yet subnitted
its curricula to the Mnistry of Education of the Republic of Serbia. Was the
Al bani an comunity prepared to inplenent the MI osevi c- Rugova agreenent in
actual practice? Paragraphs 81 and 82 indicated avenues which could be
explored in the quest for a solution to the education problem and which, in
his view, could serve as a good basis. |f the Al banian community coul d not
agree to the proposals contained in paragraph 82, then perhaps it could submt
its own suggestions. The inpression given in paragraphs 103 to 105 was that
cultural establishnments in Kosovo and Metohija were working in a reasonably
sati sfactory manner.

37. In her report, (E/ CN. 4/1998/15), the Special Rapporteur of the

Commi ssi on on Human Ri ghts, had cone to the conclusion that in fact no
concrete steps had been taken to put the agreement signed by

Presi dent M1l osevic and Dr. Rugova into practice. The joint comr ssion
tasked to inplenent the agreenent had nmet several tinmes, but the parties
seenmed to be locked in their positions (paragraph 65). The Comm ssion had net



CERD/ C/ SR. 1260
page 8

several tinmes, but unfortunately the two sides had not been prepared to
conprom se. According to her information, discrimnation against Al banians
persisted, for exanple in connection with their right to buy and sel

property.

38. M. Wl frum who had previously served as Country Rapporteur and was
unable to attend the current session, had forwarded witten comments in which
inter alia, he expressed support for many of the conclusions reached by the
Speci al Rapporteur, particularly regarding the difficulties encountered by

et hni ¢ Al bani ans in purchasi ng property.

39. He drew attention to a docunent published by the Sub-Comr ssion
on Prevention of Discrimnation and Protection of Mnorities

(E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1996/ 35) containing a conparative survey of mnority
saf eguards in Yugosl avi a.

40. Lastly, he felt it appropriate to nention the verdict handed down in
March 1995 by the Administrative Court of Brunswi ck, Federal Republic of
Germany, in a lawsuit brought by a family of asylum seekers fromthe

Aut ononobus Provi nce of Kosovo and Metohija, notw thstanding the reservations
expressed by one nmenber of the Committee regarding the notivation of the
judicial body concerned, which m ght have been under pressure to di scourage a
further inflow of refugees. The JaSari famly's claimfor asylum had been
rejected by the Board of Judges on the grounds that actions taken in Kosovo
whi ch coul d be designated as persecution of ethnic Al banians were not directed
against their ethnic affiliation but against political activities by
separatists. Account had been taken of the findings of the German M nistry of
Foreign Affairs, a letter dated 14 February 1994 fromthe United Nations High
Commi ssi oner for Refugees to the Suprene Adm nistrative Court in Bavaria and
statenments to the Adm nistrative Court of Munich in 1993 by Austria's
representative in the Long-term Cbserver M ssion for Kosovo, Sandzak and

Voj vodi na of the Conference on Security and Cooperation in Europe (CSCE)

41. He expressed the hope that the Commttee could make a contri bution
however snmall, to an inprovenent of the human rights situation in Yugoslavia
and hence to stability in the region

42. M. van BOVEN stressed the Commttee's fornal position that, even in
cases where dial ogue had been interrupted, States Parties continued to be
bound by their obligations under the Convention. He was therefore extrenely
di sappoi nted that the Committee's concl udi ng observations on the previous
report of Yugoslavia (A/48/18) had been ignored. He also regretted that there
had been no followup to the good offices nission

43. He agreed with the Country Rapporteur that the report, particularly
par agraphs 12, 17, 6, 49, 51 and 71, described the existing |egal franework
but failed to provide practical exanples of its application

44, He al so joined the Country Rapporteur in expressing the hope that the
Committee could play a nodest role in inproving the situation in Kosovo. The
report seemed to place all the blanme on the ethnic Al banians, for exanple in



CERD/ C/ SR. 1260
page 9

par agr aphs 63 and 80, which depicted them as unresponsive and obstructi onist.
He drew the del egation's attention to the Conmttee's previous conclusions and
recommendati ons (A/48/18), particularly paragraphs 538, 542 and 544.

45. Wth reference to article 5 of the Convention, paragraph 28 of the
report by the Special Rapporteur (E/CN.4/1998/15) stated that there had been
particularly serious violations in Kosovo of national and international |aw
requiring that arrested persons be brought pronptly before a judge.
Apparently no action had been taken agai nst police officers who had kept two
persons in illegal custody, tortured them and m sinformed the judge about the
date of their arrest. Paragraph 31 referred to continued reports of torture
and ill-treatment, particularly from Kosovo, and paragraph 32 to the bruta
treatnment of a denonstrator, M. Dejan Bulatovic. In conclusion, the Specia
Rapporteur recomended that inmedi ate steps should be taken to end police
abuse in Kosovo, to investigate police behaviour and to provide human rights
training for |aw enforcenent officers. He also drew attention to a report by
the Special Rapporteur on two trials of Kosovo Al bani ans charged with of fences
agai nst the State (E/ CN. 4/1998/9).

46. A statenment by the Governnent of the Republic of Serbia dated

10 March 1998 had been circulated to the Committee. It stated that the recent
activities of the Mnistry of the Interior of Serbia in Kosovo and Metohija
had been carried out exclusively with a viewto conbatting terrorism that
their scope was strictly limted and that their purpose was to |liquidate the
“"terrorist core". He wondered whet her the dead children and wonen shown in
the nedia were menbers of terrorist gangs. The killings had reportedly taken
pl ace in houses and courtyards. Was that a justifiable means of conbatting
terrorisn? He welconmed the Governnment's invitation to an expert group of the
International Conmttee of the Red Cross to visit Kosovo and Metohija to
"verify the rumours circulated in sone nedia". He wondered whet her such a
group would be permitted to conduct autopsies in order to determ ne the

ci rcunstances in which certain persons had been kill ed.

47. Turning to the situation of the Roma mnority in Montenegro, he referred
to a case described by the Special Rapporteur in paragraph 83 of her report
(E/CN. 4/ 1998/ 15). Followi ng the rape of a Montenegrin girl in Podgorica in
April 1995 by a Roma boy who had subsequently been inprisoned, several hundred
peopl e had destroyed the houses and property of the I ocal Roma conmunity. No
crimnal proceedings had been initiated against the perpetrators unti

June 1997, when pressure fromthe Special Rapporteur had apparently produced
the requisite response. He asked the delegation to informthe Commttee of
further devel opnents.

48. According to paragraph 8 of the sanme report, the Government had
consistently refused to neet its international obligations to hand over those
indicted for war crinmes and crinmes agai nst humanity to the United Nations
International Crimnal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia. It had been argued
t hat suspected war crimnals should be tried before donestic courts but,
according to the Special Rapporteur, only one such trial had taken place. He
wi shed to hear the del egation's comments on what he viewed as a matter of
serious concern



CERD/ C/ SR. 1260
page 10

49. M. DIACONU said it was ironic that Yugoslavia had only recently been a
chanpion of mnority causes and had initiated in 1978 the negotiati ons which
had I ed to the adoption by the General Assenbly in 1992 of the Declaration on
the Rights of Persons Belonging to National or Ethnic, Religious and

Li nguistic Mnorities.

50. He regretted that the good offices mission initiated in 1993 had been
interrupted and that neither the United Nations nor the Government of
Yugosl avi a had found a way of surnmounting the formal obstacles and all ow ng
the m ssion to continue.

51. Aut onony or self-governnment was neither a minority right nor a
government obligation but a neans of achieving certain political or human
rights objectives. The scope of the autonony to be accorded to a mnority was
an internal issue for individual countries and nmnorities were free to seek
aut onony t hrough peaceful denopcratic processes but not to use violent neans.

52. He failed to understand why the M| osevi c- Rugova agreenent on education
signed in Septenber 1996 had not been inplenented. How di d the Government of
Yugosl avi a propose to address the issues involved?

53. Par agraph 17 of the core docunment (HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 40) stated that

| anguages and al phabets of national mnorities were officially used in areas
of Yugoslavia inhabited by national minorities. 1t was clear fromthe report
that, while Montenegrin | aw provided for the use of mnority |anguages,

i ncl udi ng Al bani an, for adm nistrative and ot her purposes, the Republic of
Serbia assigned jurisdiction in such matters to the nmunicipalities. As a
result, the problem of use of mnority |anguages had been solved in Vojvodi na
but not in Kosovo. He felt that Serbia should follow Mntenegro' s exanple and
address the issue in legislation at Republic level. He asked the del egation
to specify the extent to which the Al banian | anguage was used in Kosovo for
toponyns, in judicial proceedings and in the activities of public bodies.

54, Par agraph 18 of the core docunment included sonme 130,000 Wall achians in
a statistical breakdown of the popul ation by nother tongue but they were not
included in the list of mnorities. Didthey belong to the group known as
Macedo- Romani ans or Aronmani ans? Had they access to facilities for

not her -t ongue i nstruction?

55. Wth regard to the situation in Kosovo, any action against terrorist
groups nust be proportionate to the objectives pursued and involve a m ni mum
of destruction to human |ife and property. As the report admtted that the
terrorists were a snmall minority, there was no reason to inflict suffering on
the entire ethnic Al banian population. How did the authorities intend to
conpensate fani|lies whose hones had been destroyed?

56. M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ said the reported nmeasures being taken by the
State Party were largely consistent with the provisions of the Convention. O
course there were shortcom ngs, especially in terms of the application of

| egislation. Fornulation of the Committee's conments on the inplenentation of




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1260
page 11

t he Convention, inportant as it was, would, however, have to yield in

i mportance to the grave events taking place in Kosovo, which had escalated to
such an extent that they risked unleashing war in the Bal kans and nei ghbouri ng
countries and seriously endangering international peace and security. That
threat had to be dealt with as soon as possible. The Comrittee could not
remain silent in the face of the major violations of fundanmental rights being
reported in the province, and was al arned by the continued mlitary
operations. Any mlitary solution would nmean only greater problens and nore
use of force

57. The Committee was obviously not conmpetent to deal with political issues,
whi ch were undoubtedly at the heart of the situation in Kosovo or with the
ongoi ng confrontation there. It could only address matters relating to the

Convention. The current situation did not, however, allow for due

i mpl enentati on of the Convention. There were charges of a wave of armed
persecution of the Al banian popul ati on in Kosovo, which violated not only the
Convention but other international human rights instrunents to which

Yugosl avia was a party. How could the elimnation of racial discrimnation be
consi dered under those circunstances? The Committee’s major concern, rather
shoul d be to urge the Governnent to cease the armed confrontation and to put
all its efforts into seeking a negotiated, peaceful solution and avoiding an
aggravation of the problem That appeal should naturally also be directed to
the | eaders of the Al banian population in the province.

58. M. GARVALOV said that, at the time of the Cormittee’s good offices

m ssion in 1993, he had stressed that the Conmttee had provided the only good
of fices mssion - as opposed to an investigative, on-site or other type of

m ssion - to discuss the problem of Kosovo, at the Government’s invitation

He was di scouraged that nothing had cone of that m ssion, and perhaps the
Governnment should be informed of the Conmittee’s interest in resuming it.

59. Much of the report was instructive, for instance on the inplenmentation
of article 7 of the Convention, but nore specific information was needed.

60. The situation in Kosovo had escal ated since 1989, and had reached the
poi nt during the previous week where, although it involved violations of human
rights and racial discrimnation, it had becone a political issue. The

Committee was on record as saying it could in no way condone unil atera
attenpts at secession or destruction of the territorial integrity of States
Parties. But the situation showed how a sinple problem which had perhaps
begun with acts of racial discrimnation some decades earlier but which had
never been resolved could ultinmately lead to an alnpbst intractable politica
probl em

61. In the case of Kosovo, it was difficult in the circunstances to ask for
the promotion of understanding, tol erance and friendship, which were called
for under article 7. People’s mnds could not be changed overnight; it would
be a very lengthy process, and he wi shed the State Party well in resolving the
i ssue.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1260
page 12

62. Quoting a headline in the 9 March 1998 edition of the |Internationa
Herald Tribune, he said that the situation in Kosovo was a matter of gl oba
concern. In its statement of 10 March, the Government of the Republic of
Serbi a had nmade a clear distinction between terrorists and terrorismon the
one hand and the nenbers of the Al banian national mnority on the other. 1In
par agr aphs 80-81 of the report, however, the only reference was to “the

Al bani an separatists”; the use of the definite article was significant. Wuld
the State Party clarify how it viewed the Al banians in Kosovo - were they al
separatists, or only sone?

63. Paragraph 8 listed Muslinms as one of the groups in the country’s
denographic structure. Wre they ethnically different from Serbs or other
mnorities, or were they different because of their affiliation to the Mislim
faith? Did the 26,922 Bulgarians in the country really have the kind of
equality and freedom descri bed in paragraph 15 under the constitutiona

provi sions on national minorities? They had been voicing their grievances,
and that was one reason why the Special Rapporteur of the Comm ssion on Human
Ri ghts had referred to Bulgarians in her special report on mnorities

(E/CN. 4/1997/8). Those Bulgarians clainmed that there were not enough cl asses
with instruction in Bulgarian and not enough radio and tel evision broadcasts
in the | anguage; that there was no official support for opening Bul garian
cultural centres or for the reconstruction of dil api dated Bul gari an churches;
and that they were being subjected to pressure because they wanted to claim
their Bulgarian ethnicity while renaining |aw abiding citizens of Yugoslavia.

64. Al t hough the report mentioned that there were three daily newspapers,
and regular radio and tel evision broadcasts, in Turkish, it did not list Turks
as a separate mnority in the country’ s denmpgraphic structure. That there
were 3,149 hours of radio and television broadcasts in Turkish as agai nst

105 in Bul garian (paragraph 97) suggested that there nust be a sizeable
Turkish mnority, perhaps 100 times larger than the Bulgarian mnority.
Clarification was needed. Had the authorities assessed the effectiveness of
their educational and teaching policies? That had become a major issue for
the joint working group of the Comrittee and the Sub- Comm ssion on Prevention
of Discrimnation and Protection of Mnorities.

65. M. SHERIFIS asked for statistics, as well as exanples, of participation
by menbers of the various national minorities in the country's political life.
Did they have equal access to the civil service and to the executive, judicia
and | egislative branches?

66. VWhat was the State Party doi ng about the requirenent in the Conmittee's
General Reconmmendation V that it should propagate the purposes and principles
of the Charter, human rights declarations and the Convention? The Specia
Rapporteur had reconmended in her report to the fifty-second session of the
CGeneral Assenbly (A/52/490, para. 206), that the Governnent should establish a
programe of human rights education in schools, academ c and | ega

institutions as well as in police training institutions, and that it should
encourage wi der and deeper know edge of the human rights treaties to which
Yugosl avia was a party as well as their direct application in court

proceedi ngs. Those recomendati ons al so appeared to be very rel evant.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1260
page 13

67. What had happened to the agreenent on educati on between

President Ml osevic and the | eader of the Kosovo community? What were the
chances of its being inplenented? It would doubtless prove beneficial, not
only to the residents of Kosovo but to Yugoslavia as a whole and to the cause
of peace throughout the country and region. He supported M. Valencia
Rodriguez’s appeal in that regard. What was the State Party's reaction to the
suggestion that the Conmittee m ght make a contribution either by resum ng the
good offices mission or in another manner?

The neeting rose at 6 p.m




